
1 
 

Governance and Audit Committee 
 

Meeting Venue 
Teams Live 

 

 
 

County Hall 
Llandrindod Wells 

Powys 
LD1 5LG 

 
Meeting Date 
Monday, 13 September 2021 

 
Meeting Time 
2.00 pm 

 
For further information please contact 
Lisa Richards 
01597 826371 
lisa.richards@powys.gov.uk 

 07-09-2021 
 

 

Mae croeso i chi siarad yn Gymraeg neu yn Saesneg yn y cyfarfod.  
Rhowch wybod pa iaith rydych am ei defnyddio erbyn hanner dydd, ddau ddiwrnod 
gwaith cyn y cyfarfod.  
You are welcome to speak Welsh or English in the meeting.  
Please inform us of which language you wish to use by noon, two working days 
before the meeting. 

 

AGENDA 

 
1.  APOLOGIES  

 
To receive apologies for absence. 
 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
To receive declarations of interest from Members. 
 

3.  MINUTES  

 
To authorise the Chair to sign the minutes of the previous meeting held on 30 July 
2021 as a correct record. 
(Pages 3 - 12) 

4.  INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT - CHILDREN'S BUDGET MANAGEMENT  

 
To receive and consider the Children's Services Financial Management Audit – Final 
Report. 
(Pages 13 - 28) 

5.  CAPITAL PROGRAMME GOVERNANCE AND ASSURANCE  

 
To receive a verbal update by the Head of Finance. 
 

6.  GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - CONSTITUTION  

Public Document Pack



 
To receive and consider the joint report of the Chair of the Governance and Audit 
Committee, the Head of Finance and the Head of Legal and Democratic Services. 
(Pages 29 - 30) 

7.  WORK PROGRAMME  

 
To consider the forward work programme and whether any additional items should 
be included. 
(Pages 31 - 32) 

8.  EXEMPT ITEMS  

 
To consider passing the following Resolution: 
 
RESOLVED to exclude the public for the following items of business on the grounds 
that there would be disclosure to them of exempt information under category 3 of 
The Local Authorities (Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007). 
 
The Monitoring Officer has determined that category 3 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules applies to the following items. His view on the public interest test 
(having taken account of the provisions of Rule 14.8 of the Council's Access to 
Information Rules) was that to make this information public would disclose 
information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information). 
 
These factors in his view outweigh the public interest in disclosing this information. 
Members are asked to consider these factors when determining the public interest 
test, which they must decide when considering excluding the public from this part of 
the meeting. 
 

9.  GENERAL CENTRE FOR RAIL EXCELLENCE (GCRE)  

 
To receive a verbal update from the Corporate Director (Economy and Environment) 
 
 
 



Governance and Audit Committee – 30 July 2021 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE HELD 
AT TBC ON FRIDAY, 30 JULY 2021 

 
PRESENT 
County Councillors JG Morris (Chair),  D R Jones, M J Jones, K Lewis, DW Meredith, 
D A Thomas, R G Thomas, A Williams, J M Williams and R Williams and 
Mr J Brautigam       
 
Cabinet Portfolio Holders In Attendance: County Councillors M Alexander, B 
Baynham, A W Davies and R Powell 
 
Officers: Paul Bradshaw, Head of Workforce and Organizational Development, Nigel, 
Brinn, Corporate Director, Economy and Environment, Ali Bulman, Corporate Director, 
Adults and Children, J Chappelle, Capital and Financial Planning Accountant, Yvette 
Kottaun, Senior Investigator, Andrea Mansfield, Project Officer Civil Contingencies 
and Events, David Morris, Income and Awards Senior Manager and Jane Thomas, 
Head of Finance 
 
Other Officers in Attendance: Ian Halstead, SWAP, Bethan Hopkins and Phil Pugh, 
Audit Wales 
 
 

1.  APOLOGIES  

 
Apologies for absence were received from County Councillors M Barnes, WD Powell 
and T J Van-Rees 
 
 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
There were no declarations of interest. 

 
 

3.  MINUTES  

 
The Chair was authorised to sign the minutes of the previous meeting as a 
correct record. 

 
 

4.  AUDIT WALES  

 
 
 

4.1. Letter to Chairs of Governance and Audit Committees  
 

Documents: 

 Letter to Chairs of Audit and Governance Committees 
 
Discussion: 

 Audit Wales had attended the Chairs’ Network meeting in November 2020 

 Reports were being considered differently across authorities and it was 
hoped to achieve consistency.  All regulator reports should be considered 

Public Document Pack

Page 3

3



Governance and Audit Committee – 30 July 2021 
 

by Governance and Audit Committees for assurance purposes.  The 
Committee could then refer the report to the appropriate scrutiny 
committee and monitor the implementation of recommendations. 

 The Committee noted that on previous occasions they were not able to 
discuss issues with the Chair of the Improvement and Assurance Board.  
Audit Wales confirmed that the Governance and Audit Committee have a 
responsibility to liaise with other bodies and need to be assured 
recommendations are being taken forward and action being taken. 

 The Chair had met the Head of Transformation and Communications to 
discuss the tracker now in place to monitor and track progress for all 
regulator external reports.   

 
Outcomes: 

 The availability of the tracker to be confirmed together with training 
for Members in its use 

4.2. Audit Wales Work Programme  
 

Documents: 

 Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable 
 
Discussion: 

 Quarterly updates regarding the work programme will be provided to 
Governance and Audit Committee as required by the Local Government 
and Elections Act 

 Timescales were indicative 

 The Pension Fund Audit is required to be completed by the end of 
November – audit resources are currently prioritised to complete the 
Councils’ statutory Statement of Accounts first for completion and sign off 
by the end of September. 

 Audit Wales and the Head of Finance meet regularly to review the 
position. 

 The final report regarding Financial Sustainability had recently been 
issued with a national summary due to be released in early September.  
The national summary would highlight themes raised across all 22 local 
authorities in Wales 

 The Scrutiny report had been submitted to the Council in draft 

 Audit Wales liaise with other regulators and will provide a summary across 
all bodies 

 The Chair reminded Members that the Committee was required to formally 
consider all relevant national reports but would not necessarily undertake 
a detailed review of the report 

 
Outcomes: 

 The report was noted 
 

5.  STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

 
Documents: 

 Report of the Head of Finance 

 Cabinet report  

 Strategic Risk Register 

Page 4



Governance and Audit Committee – 30 July 2021 
 

 Heat Map 
 
Discussion: 
 
The Chair explained that the Committee would consider one or two items in 
detail at each meeting. 

 
5.1. Health and Care Workforce Development  

 
The Committee welcomed the Corporate Director, Adults and Children, Head of 
Workforce as well as the Portfolio Holders for Workforce, Adult Services and 
Children’s Services. 
 
Discussion: 

 The Corporate Director had been invited to discuss Workforce 
Development in Health and Social Care 

 Risk WO021 was wider than just social care 

 The adult care sector relies on manual labour which is not particularly well 
paid.  The cost and availability of staff may not be sufficient to meet future, 
increasing demand. 

 Transformation is key  

 If the risk is not mitigated people’s needs may not be met in the future 

 A variety of processes are being trialled. 

 The Authority has a Workforce Board, but this has been suspended during 
the pandemic 

 There is a high vacancy rate in the Head of Workforce’s team 

 A Workforce Cell has been established to ensure staff are being 
redeployed effectively 

 Currently there are 15 apprentices in social care with 15 further career 
grade apprentices since January 2020.  Some of these have been 
recruited to permanent posts. 

 The service is currently working with care leavers to become apprentices 

 19 placements have been made under the Kickstart Scheme – there have 
only been a few referrals from the Department of Work and Pensions and 
further work is being undertaken to ascertain why take up is low 

 A bid has been submitted to Academy of Wales Graduate Scheme for 
February 2022 

 The ‘Grow Our Own’ programme for social workers has led to 10 
qualifying in the last three years.  The service is supporting 15 more to 
train and qualify. 

 Within Children’s Services there are 36 vacancies and 34 agency workers 
employed.  Agency staff had reduced to around 20 pre pandemic which 
had been a significant reduction.  There is an expectation that face-to-face 
meetings are conducted with children on the Child Protection Register and 
there has been resistance from some agency workers to undertake that 
role.  Staffing pressures are currently in the south of the county, but these 
could arise in any part of the county. 

 The Powys Pledge has been launched to support the care sector 

 Continued transformation of services is key  

 Members asked if BREXIT had had affected recruitment – the Corporate 
Director reported that there had been no significant impact in social care.  

Page 5



Governance and Audit Committee – 30 July 2021 
 

She also chairs a weekly Wales wide meeting and reports that there were 
food shortages in care homes were unfounded 

 The Committee asked whether a social worker was contracted to work for 
a specific length of time once qualified as a social worker through the 
Grow Our Own Scheme – there were no timescales in place, but this was 
subject to review.  The service was assessing how to support newly 
qualified social workers.  The Corporate Director aimed for the Authority to 
be the employer of choice. 

 WCCIS was a major issue and is being addressed as best as it can within 
contractual arrangements.  This has been cited as a cause of low staff 
morale. 

 The Portfolio Holder for Adult Services also noted that there were 
complexities to consider as it was not yet clear what the post covid era 
may look like.  There had been a sharp decline in those going into 
residential care and an increase in more intensive packages of care at 
home – it remains to be seen if this pattern will be sustained. 

 
Outcomes: 

 The Committee was assured that appropriate mitigation was in 
place to address Strategic Risk WO0021 

 
WCCIS 
 

 The Corporate Director briefed the Committee on issues with the 
WCCIS system which is the data base for social care and holds all 
care and support plans.   

 It is a national shared system for Health Boards and Local Authorities 

 There have been significant concerns for 9 months such as planned 
and unplanned outages and slow system performance. 

 Its underperformance is impacting on staff morale and the recording of 
delivery of statutory targets 

 IT Services manage the package but is of such concern that the 
Corporate Director is now attending national groups dealing with it 

 Options were currently being considered alongside the implications 

 The position is untenable, and the Corporate Director does not have 
assurance that the system is fit for purpose 

 A briefing note had been prepared for the Chief Executive and this 
would be circulated to Members of the Committee for information.  

 It was reported that the Health and Care Scrutiny Committee had also 
been briefed on the issue and were also concerned. 

 Vulnerable people could be put at risk through the failure of the system 

 Audit Wales were also aware of the problem and continue to monitor 
through their audit and risk arrangements 

 
Outcomes: 

 The Committee were not assured around the risk associated with 
WCCIS but supported the actions taken by the Corporate Director 

5.2. Brexit  
 

The Committee welcomed the Corporate Director, Economy and Environment, 
and the Project Officer Events and Civil Contingencies  
 

Page 6



Governance and Audit Committee – 30 July 2021 
 

Discussion: 

 There were two working groups, one external and one internal, which 
meet regularly to ensure that up to date guidance has been provided and 
disseminated 

 Many of the issues expected prior to Brexit have not materialised 

 There had been a separate risk register for Brexit, but these risks are now 
being incorporated into service risk registers 

 Support from the Welsh Government had been provided to employ a 
Brexit Co-ordinator.  That work has been split between two existing 
members of staff, but a dedicated officer may be recruited following a 
restructuring of the Regeneration Team 

 
Outcomes: 

 The Committee was assured that appropriate mitigation measures 
were in place 

 
 
Heart of Wales Property Services (HOWPS) 
 

 The Committee had requested an update following the decision to bring 
the service back in house in 2022 

 Weekly meetings are taking place with transition staff and a dedicated 
Project Manager has been put in place 

 There have been significant levels of communication with HOWPS staff 

 A Transition Team has been established to consider and manage all the 
implications of the change, this includes payroll, fleet, pensions etc 

 150 staff are affected 

 There is high assurance from Kier that there will be business as usual 
over the next 12 months 

 Clear expectations have been established 

 The Authority are looking to minimise costs during the handover.  There 
was awareness that there had been criticism at the start of the joint 
venture with the introduction of a new fleet and livery 

 The costs of JV transition will be shared equally between the partners 

 Regular reports will be made to the HOWPS Working Group 

 A new risk noted that there was a shortage of building materials – this risk 
is corporate and will be reflected in the Strategic Risk Register 

 
Outcomes: 

 The Chair would liaise with the Scrutiny Committee Chair and 
monitor progress of HOWPS 

 

6.  FRAUD  

 
Documents: 

 Report of the Head of Finance 

 Powys Baseline Assessment for Fraud 

 SWAP Cross-cutting baseline assessment for fraud 

 Audit Wales – Raising Our Game, Tackling Fraud in Wales 
 
Discussion: 

Page 7



Governance and Audit Committee – 30 July 2021 
 

 The Chair reminded Members that the report was not around specific 
cases of fraud but the response to the Audit Wales report, first considered 
by Committee in December 2020, and subsequent work undertaken by 
SWAP 

 The SWAP review into fraud risk maturity indicated that frameworks and 
strategies were in place and effective.  There had been six themes and 27 
assessment areas each of which had been given a RAG status. 

 An effective counter fraud team was in place that was appropriately skilled 

 Policies were in place and were being refreshed 

 However, there was a lack of awareness and training across the Council 
and limited reporting 

 There needed to be greater awareness of avenues for staff and public to 
report concerns 

 Future internal audit work will be aligned to fraud work and would be more 
proactive than reactive 

 The cross-partner report indicated that Powys was in second place with 
more green but also more reds. Local authorities were in similar positions 
regarding their baseline maturity assessment. 

 The Committee questioned why some issues were described as ‘amber’ 
when in fact they had not been completed at all and should be ‘red’.  The 
Assistant Director explained that the assessments covered many criteria 
and that he was happy with the scorings given.  The document was live 
and would be reviewed regularly. 

 Fraud work had continued throughout the pandemic, but the reporting had 
not.  A regular report would be provided for the Governance and Audit 
Committee going forward.   

 Many other authorities had lost their fraud investigation specialism 

 £2M overpayments have been recovered over 4 years 

 Policies are in place and had been approved by both Audit Committee and 
EMT.  These have been rolled out with all officers and Councillors 
expected to accept the policies 

 There have been 67 investigations in 2021 with 10 cases of fraud proven 
and one case closed with recommendations to the service for process 
improvements 

 The Team also provide support and advice to services 

 Weaknesses are identified – a current case has highlighted a process 
failure, practice and systems and a manipulation of recording systems – 
EMT have been informed and Internal Audit has been asked to review the 
work 

 In response to the Audit Wales report, structural changes have been 
implemented and improvements to training rolled out. 

 The Committee had previously recommended that fraud training be 
mandatory for all staff – an e-learning package existed but was not 
currently mandatory, but EMT are reviewing the position 

 The Chair reminded Members that significant values could be involved – 
anything between £100M and £1B (based on figures estimated by the 
Cabinet Office) 

 It was key that officers and Members declare their interests and that 
management are also aware of those interests.  SWAP had undertaken 
an audit of declarations of interest which had highlighted that elements of 

Page 8



Governance and Audit Committee – 30 July 2021 
 

the framework were lacking and the process was flawed.  Some actions 
have been delivered but further work is needed. 

 
Outcomes: 

 The Committee were assured that progress was being made 
 
 
 

 
 

7.  INTERNAL AUDIT  

 
Documents: 

 Internal Audit Opinion Report 2020/21 
 
Discussion: 

 It is a requirement that this report be provided for those charged with 
governance to consider 

 The pandemic has had a significant impact on assurance work undertaken 
but alternative methods were deployed 

 There had been coverage over the main risk areas although less than 
normal 

 64% of reports provided reasonable assurance with 34% having limited or 
low assurance 

 Generally, the Council is addressing reports effectively and timely 

 Two data analysts have been appointed and are key to understanding 
process 

 Benchmarking across partners is undertaken 

 One page reporting helps respond to the speed of risk 

 Sound systems of governance were in place, but some minor issues 
needed to be addressed 

 
Outcomes: 

 The report was noted 
 

7.1. Q1 Performance Report  
 

Documents: 

 SWAP  Q1 Performance Report 
 
Discussion: 

 There are 199 actions currently on the tracker with 10 of those being 
overdue 

 This represents an improvement since the tracker was introduced when 
34 actions had been overdue 

 Overall, the Council is mitigating risks and they are being well managed 

 It was noted that a number of outstanding actions were attributable to 
Education – the risk was thought to be small and mainly related to one 
primary school.  It was hoped that these would all have been addressed 
by the next meeting 

 The introduction of the tracker has been welcomed 

Page 9



Governance and Audit Committee – 30 July 2021 
 

 
Outcomes: 

 The performance report was noted 
7.2. Q2 Audit Plan  

 
Documents: 

 Internal Audit Plan Q1 and Q2 
 
Discussion: 

 Risks across the sector are identified and work aligned to those risks 

 Further assurance mapping will be undertaken going forward 

 The Committee questioned how topics for inclusion were determined and 
whether this was an independent process – a number of factors were 
considered including risk, previous audit work, Head of Service requests, 
network groups etc.  All this is considered, and an independent decision 
taken by the Head of Internal Audit 

 
Outcomes: 

 The work plan was endorsed 
 

8.  CAPITAL PROGRAMME GOVERNANCE AND ASSURANCE  

 
Documents: 

 Report of the Head of Finance 
 
Discussion: 

 The issue of the affordability of the capital programme had been raised in 
a previous Audit Committee.  Since then, the Chair, Vice Chair and Head 
of Finance have been working on providing more oversight of the 
governance of the capital programme including affordability 

 The report set out some specific pieces of work that will assist the 
Committee in scrutinising the arrangements to seek assurance that the 
appropriate systems control and processes are in place to ensure that 
capital projects are considered, approved, procured and managed 
effectively and that value for money is secured 

 The Welsh Government 21 Century Schools programme uses the 5- case 
business model and Committee will be provided with more detail on this to 
provide them with greater assurance on the robustness of the process  

 Committee welcomed the proposals and agreed that the work be 
commissioned  

 It was also asked that the benefits accruing to the revenue budget also be 
provided – this should be part of the project appraisal 

 The Committee also asked that environmental costs be considered – this 
will be considered as there is a clear focus on net 0 emissions 

 
Outcomes: 

 The proposal was welcomed, and the Committee hoped that this 
would be implemented as soon as possible 

 
 

9.  TREASURY MANAGEMENT - Q1  

 
Page 10



Governance and Audit Committee – 30 July 2021 
 

Documents: 

 Report of the Portfolio Holder for Finance 
 
Discussion: 

 The position had not changed significantly but the funding received for the 
Global Centre for Rail Excellence was now included 

 The Capital Programme had been reprofiled and had increased to £115M 
from £101M for the current year 

 Capital Financing Requirements have fallen but this is a deferral rather 
than a reduction 

 Short-term borrowing at year end had been repaid – it was likely further 
short term borrowing would be required in August to support cash flow 
and the capital programme 

 Revised indicators show that there will be a significant impact in the next 
two years due to the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy change 
and reprofiling of the budget 

 It is likely that interest rates will start to rise and the Committee drew 
attention to the need for longer term borrowing to be entered into in the 
near future 

 Short term borrowing is likely to remain sustainable until the end of the 
financial year 

 A new table in the report showing cost and revenue streams was 
welcomed – a further request to include numerical values was accepted 

 A previous report had shown poor performance against VAT for purchase 
cards – this had been due to a number of invoices which were not VAT 
invoices.  It had been concluded that there was no VAT on the purchases 
questioned and this has improved performance levels for purchase cards 

 Work had been planned to reduce the number of errors and improve 
efficiency – this transformation work had not been rolled out as quickly as 
hoped due to the pandemic but was now back on track 

 The Committee asked if the future Generations Act had been considered 
for the adjustment to the MRP policy and whether SWAP had investigated 
the issue.  The Committee was advised that Audit Wales would consider 
this rather than SWAP and they had been involved prior to the change in 
policy being implemented.  Any decision made had to consider the 
requirements of the Future Generations Act. 

 Members, whilst welcoming the investment for GCRE, remained cautious 
about the risk and sought assurances around the management of the 
project.  The Head of Finance confirmed that the funding had been 
accepted early in the project and the risk had been highlighted and 
understood.  A detailed business case was not yet available.  If the level 
of risk changes, The Council would need to consider provision under the 
MRP. 

 Outline planning permission for the project had recently been granted.  
Members questioned why this model had been picked but this query 
would need to be addressed to the Welsh Government 

 The Portfolio Holder welcomed the investment 
 
Outcomes: 

 The Chair and Head of Finance would write separately to the Welsh 
Government seeking an explanation of the model of financing the 
project 

Page 11



Governance and Audit Committee – 30 July 2021 
 

 
 

10.  WORK PROGRAMME  

 
Documents 

 Work Programme 
 
Discussion: 

 The internal audit report on Y Gaer was still awaited and a special 
meeting would be arranged to consider the report 

 The Capital Programme work would be added to the work programme 

 Audit Wales Financial Sustainability – local report and national summary 
to be included in the work programme 

 
 
 

County Councillor JG Morris (Chair) 

Page 12



Children’s Services Financial Management – Final Report – August 2021                           
                               

Full details of our audit are available upon request Unrestricted 

 
 
 

 

Background 

Conclusion 

 
The financial management of budgets in Children Services has resulted in a frequent mismatch between available resources and required resources. In 2019/20, Children’s Services 
overspent their budget of £20.6 m by £4.65m. In 2020/21, the process used by the Council to create the budget was changed significantly.  The Service calculated their budget to 
include the pressures they would be under during the year, e.g., pay awards and known workload increases. The Council accepted the need to cover these pressures as part of the 
budget. It was reported in Period 9 Financial Monitoring report for 20/21 that Children Services was still forecast to exceeds the baseline budget set by £1.4m.. However, the year end 
outturn report for 20/21 reported that the service would underspend by £944,000. It was stated that the underspend was “predominantly due to Covid-19 related expenditure being 
eligible for Welsh Government Covid-19 Hardship Funding previously included in the forecast outturn”. These additional funds injected at the very end of the financial year make it very 
hard to determine the effectiveness of the management of the Children Services budget. In addition, there was significant amount of budget administration by Childrens Services that 
freed up previously committed funds. This lack of administration contribution in a lack of visibility on the true budget position throughout the year and impacted on the underspend.  
 
Children Services has a historical pattern of failing to deliver operational plans within the approved budgets. However, changes to the process have resulted in an improvement in the 
general direction of travel in financial management, but there are still areas of risk.  It is therefore imperative that needs are continually prioritised and that resources are fairly allocated 
to fulfil all legal responsibilities. It is hard to judge the performance in managing the budget for this year, due to the effect of the Covid 19 pandemic. The Council’s Business Continuity 
plans would have affected the Service delivery, alongside the Council receipt of Covid -19 grant from the Welsh Government.  

Assurance Opinion 
Recommendation 

Summary  

 

There is a generally sound system of 
governance, risk management and 
control in place. Some issues, non-
compliance or scope for 
improvement were identified which 
may put at risk the achievement of 
objectives in the area audited. 

Priority  Number  

Priority 1  0 

Priority 2  6 

Priority 3  3 

Total  9 

Risks Reviewed  Assessment  

Budgets are not managed correctly or based on 
realistic assumptions and saving targets resulting in 
the inability to deliver expenditure within the 
budgetary value available.  

Medium  

Audit Scope 

To review the processes used by Children’s Services with regards 
to their Financial Management to determine if any improvement 
is needed.  

The Council is a complex organisation responsible for delivering a wide variety of services. It needs to plan effectively and to develop systems to enable scarce resources to be allocated 
in accordance with carefully weighted priorities. The budget is the financial expression of the authority’s plans and policies. Budget management ensures that once the budget has been 
approved by the Full Council, resources allocated are used for their intended purposes and are properly accounted for.  
 
Budgetary management is a continuous process, enabling the authority to review and adjust its budget targets during the financial year. It also provides the mechanism that calls to 
account managers responsible for defined elements of the budget. By continuously identifying and explaining variances against budgetary targets, the Council can identify changes in 
trends and resource requirements at the earliest opportunity.  
 
To ensure that the authority in total does not overspend, each service is required to manage its own expenditure within the cash-limited budget allocated to it. 

Audit Objective 
To determine whether the Council has effective internal controls for the management of financial resources and employment of agency workers in Children’s 
Services 
 

P
age 13

4



Children’s Services Financial Management – Final Report – August 2021                           
                               

Full details of our audit are available upon request Unrestricted 

Key Findings 

 

Budget Setting – Creation and Allocation 
 

• There was a regular pattern of setting annual baseline budgets that were significantly inaccurate by Quarter 1 because of the Service pressures. 

• In 19/20, over half of all cost centres were overspent on their budget, although only 13 had significant overspends (see Table 1 in Appendix 2).  This would suggest 
a misalignment between the assumption used to create the baseline budget as there is immediate pressures and overspends. 

• The budget created in 19/20 was seen by the Council as a key area of financial risk. It was stated by the Deputy Head of Finance that “it was recognised that in 

order to improve outcomes and address the findings in the poor Children’s Service inspection report that a whole Council approach would be required.   The 

council’s budget included a £2 million corporate revenue budget to address this potential risk.”   
• In 20/21, the process of allocating the baseline budgets was changed to reflect increasing cost pressures but was then reduced by the savings to be delivered.  At 

period 8 of 20/21, accounts display that there were 4 cost codes that significantly overspent on their annual budget by over £100,000. 

• It was stated by Head of Children Services that the budget for 20/21 was the first balanced budget that had been created in a while and that the service was happy 
with the budget that had been created.  

• A survey indicated that operational budget holders in Children Services do not feel that they have been appropriately involved with the budget setting process.  
 

Budgets were historically not representative of the true cost of the service and were created based on a percentage increase. 
 
Changes to the budgeting process in 20/21 have in large been successful in creating a budget that is more realistic, representative, and well communicated. However, 
the Auditors have not been able to draw a definitive conclusion as the 20/21 budget monitoring was affected by an unforeseen injection of Welsh Government Funding 
and poor administration of financial commitments.   A more inclusive budget setting process by either the Finance team, Children Services Management, or both will 
enhance the acceptance, ownership, and delivery of the budget. 
 

 

Budget Setting -Agency / Staff Costs 
 
The workforce budget for Children Services is set based on the cost of the employees on the establishment.  However, the reality is that many vacant posts are filled by 
Agency / Contract workers and that the cost of an FTE Agency worker is much more costly than someone on the establishment. As a result, the staff related budgets have 
been underspent and Contracted Services/ Agency budgets become significantly overspent because no budget is allocated during budget setting. It was stated that funds 
would be moved to the agency cost codes when they are needed. 
 
The survey found that budget and cost reduction was the lowest priority considered by budget holders when appointing an agency worker or member of staff. 
 
The Council spend £3,320,638.67 on agency costs in 19/20 and £1,472,575 up to period 8 in 20/21. There has been no budget allocated to this cost area either at the start 
of the year or during the year. The Council has limited budgetary control over agency costs. It was commented by the Head of Service that the estimated costs for agency 
workers are calculated at the beginning of the year and included within the FRM (Finance Resource Module).   
 
There is a process for the approval of agency worker appointments which requires authorisation by the Finance team, as well as spreadsheets kept by the service to monitor 
the number and costs of their current agency staff. This process does little to control spending in this area as budgets are not allocated and therefore spending is not subject 
the normal monitoring arrangements. (See Table 2, Graphs 1-2, Appendix 2). 
 

P
age 14



Children’s Services Financial Management – Final Report – August 2021                           
                               

Full details of our audit are available upon request Unrestricted 

It is fundamental for accurate financial reporting and to comply with accounting practices that a budget is allocated to a cost centre prior to the posting of expenditure. It 
was stated by the Head of Finance that “There should be budget allocated to account codes that form a considerable element of the budget and this should be reviewed 
and amended on an annual basis, or even in year if the budget required is significant. This should be done in line with the Financial Regulations following the virement 
process.” 
 
The following table was taken from the Financial Monitoring Outturn 20/21. There is capacity within the staffing budget for the Agency staff costs, however, displays that 
the virement process has not been followed.  
 

Category Annual Working Budget Outturn Variation from Budget 

Staffing £12,4777,330 £10,349,156 £2,128,174 

Agency £820,898 £2,597,973 -£1,777,075 

 
 
The Council is failing to directly budget and control the costs of agency / contracted workers. Budgets are matched to costs retrospectively as they are incurred. This 
approach does not allow the Service to monitor expenditure against a target and therefore fails to encourage financial control. It is unclear why the estimated costs for 
agency staff cannot be included within a separate agency budget at the start of the year.   
 
 

 

Budget Setting –Cost Reductions / Savings 
 

• Savings were not incorporated into the baseline budget by function for the 19/20 accounts but were instead allocated to a generic non-specific budget 
code. This was probably because it was unclear where the savings would be found as some plans were not in place. Therefore, it was unclear which 
areas of the Service had to reduce costs to deliver the agreed savings. (See Appendix 2 table 4).  

• A change in the budgeting process by Finance required Children Services to incorporate the cost reductions into the baseline budget. As a result, there 
was significant improvement in 20/21 as 90% of cost reductions were included within the baseline budget (See appendix 2 Table 5). 

 
The process of budget setting had vastly improved in 20/21 with the prescribed budgets being a holistic representation of the financial position. This will make the 
reporting and monitoring of the budget position much more relevant and will give a truer picture on the delivery of the financial savings.  However, the Council should 
still endeavour to add all savings into the baseline budgets for future years.  
 

 

Budget Setting – Impact Assessments  
 
In 19/20, the business cases could not be easily linked to the savings that Children Services were planning to make, whereas there is a clear link between the impact 
assessments and the cost reductions in 20/21. 
 
Impact assessments have significantly improved which has resulted in much more visibility and support around the cost reduction programme for Children Services.  
 

 

Budget Management – Maintenance including Virements  
 
The Service uses commitment accounting through the Eprocurement for the majority of their orders. Budget Holders are required to ensure that timely housekeeping is 
undertaken to ensure that commitments that are no longer required are updated. The yearend outturn 20/21 report stated that there were £715,000 worth of 

P
age 15



Children’s Services Financial Management – Final Report – August 2021                           
                               

Full details of our audit are available upon request Unrestricted 

overstated commitments, that were no longer required were identified after period 11.  These overstatements were identified to late within the year for the service to re-
assign and allocate the money to other services.  
 
Budget accuracy is dependent on 'good housekeeping’ within the Eprocurement System. Closing down orders will enable services to identify and use the budget 
elsewhere within their areas. Good maintenance of the budget will help the service to monitor their budgets effectively.  
 
Budget holders are provided with access to Collaborate Planning (CP), which allows them to run up to date reports on the budgetary position as well as allowing them to 
move their budgets around between different cost centres (virements). The devolved nature of this system gives clear responsibility to the budget holders to actively 
maintain their budgets rather than the Finance Service. 
 
The responses from the questionnaire to Children Services budget holders indicated that none of the budget holders were using CP to manage their budgets and that half 
of them did not understand the virement process. In addition, budgets within the system were not being updated as circumstances changed throughout the year. Virements 
between budgetary codes should be made if there is not enough budget available in the original cost centre, but there is additional budget available from other parts of 
the Service or from other Services.  Whilst new processes and systems have changed the way the budget is maintained across the Council, the lack of activity and the 
questionnaire responses indicate that Children Services may prefer a more historic approach where budget maintenance in undertaken by the Finance Team.   
 
The ongoing budgetary information is not being regularly realigned to utilise resource from other parts of the Service.  This may be due to a number of factors such as: 

• contradicting views and levels of expectation on budget management between the Finance Team and Children Service, 

• there is a resistance to change 

• a lack of clarity and understanding around roles and responsibilities, 

• a shortage of skills to undertake the process 
 
On-going management of the budget cannot effectively take place unless the budget is realigned throughout the year to reflect changing needs and circumstances of 
the Council.  The tools, systems and protocols are available, but Children Services have not yet embraced the potential functionality of the collaborative planning 
system. The failure to have accurate budgets severely affects the effectiveness of budget monitoring. If the budgets are not kept up to date, this could provide 
management and scrutiny with an inaccurate budgetary picture.   
 
Failure to carry out on-going maintenance results in an incorrect budgetary position and therefore does not allow management to correct spending behaviour. 
 

 

Budget Management – Reporting to Budget holders 
 
Budget holders are automatically sent monthly electronic spreadsheets displaying their current budgets. Heads of Service and Senior Management are provided with a 
Period end financial report by the Finance Business Partner. In addition, all budget holders should have detailed access to budgetary information through the collaborative 
planning system. 
 
The Section 151 officer provides each Director / Heads of Service with timely information on receipts and payments on each budget which is sufficiently detailed to 
enable managers to fulfil their budgetary responsibilities. The process is designed to ensure that Executive Officers and Members are advised as early as possible of 
pressures likely to cause significant variances from budget as well as ensuring that Service Managers have the earliest and best possible information to maximise their 
use of resources within authorised limits. 
 
 

P
age 16



Children’s Services Financial Management – Final Report – August 2021                           
                               

Full details of our audit are available upon request Unrestricted 

 

Budget Management – Performance 
 
The graphs below show the budgetary position of Children Services for both forecast outturn and cost reductions from the year ending 2017/18 onwards. 

   
  
Funding for Children Services has increased significantly from a baseline budget of 13.1 million in 2017/18 to 26.0 million in 2020/21. The general pattern of financial 
management is that the Council approve a baseline budget at the start of the year, but straight away there are service pressures that escalates the budget required 
before the end of quarter 1 by up to 25%. However, the budget for 20/21 formally recognised service pressures and incorporated additional finance into the baseline 
budget. As a result, it can be clearly seen that that the gap between the budgeted and forecast outturn has significantly narrowed. In Quarter 3, 2021 the service was 
forecasted a 5% deficit at year end of £1.4 million. however, at year end the service was underspend by £944,000. The end of year financial management report stated 
the outrun position improved after period 11 due to: 
 

• £70,000 Additional grant funding received and utilised since February forecast outturn, which were previously forecasted baseline expenditure/core costs.  

• £70,000 Grant known about in February but since utilised to offset costs already incurred, so were included as part of the period 11 forecast outturn overspend.  

• Overstatement of service commitments/untimely housekeeping of commitments when no longer required as service ceased/changed -   £615,000, overcharge 
returned in respect of advocacy contract - £46,000, funding for placement from WG - £52,000 and a reduction in Third Party Complaints provision - £35,000. 

• Change in service demand -  
o Children Looked After (CLA) rate changes and dates of admission - £57,000 reduction. 
o Inhouse residential homes £34,000, reduction on overall running costs. 

• Other: Children from Other Local Authority (COLA) increased income - £18,000 and Internal recharge to Organisational Development in respect of Domestic 
Abuse reduction - £7,000 

 
 

10
12
14
16
18
20
22
24
26
28
30

Yr End
17/18

Q2
18/19

Yr end
19/20

Q1
19/20

Q2
19/20

Q3
19/20

Yr end
19/20

Q1
20/21

Q2
20/21

Q3
0/21

Yr end
20/21

£
's

 M
ill

io
n

s
Graph 1.1 Variation between Budget and Forcast Outrun 

Base budget Forcast Outrun

0
0.5

1
1.5

2
2.5

3
3.5

4

Year End
17/18

Year End
18/19

Year End
19/20

Year End
20/21

£
's

 M
ill

io
n

s

Axis Title

Graph 1.2 Delivery of Cost Reductions

Planned Delivered

P
age 17



Children’s Services Financial Management – Final Report – August 2021                           
                               

Full details of our audit are available upon request Unrestricted 

Austerity measures have resulted in significant reductions to local government funding. Consequentially, Powys County Council has reacted by identifying a number of 
efficiencies, savings or cost reduction measures across all Services including Children. Graph 1.2 shows that Children Services failed to make any savings during 17/18 and 
18/19 but did deliver 35% in 19/20 and 76 % in 20/21. 
 
Examination of the data point to persistent failure to respect financial budgets. There of a number of potential factors have contributed to the failure such as: 

1. the previous budgets were based on historic costs with an annual percentage increase that was not linked to service delivery plans. Simply rolling forward a 
flawed budget year on year will not address the budget deficit and the gap between baseline funding and actual expenditure, 

2. a plan of service delivery is considered, but the financial assumptions used to build the budget underrepresent the true cost of the expected service, 
3. future delivery plans are unavailable, unclear, or not supported by reasonable assumptions to enable an accurate budget to be created, 
4. the Service did not modify its delivery model to take into account the financial constraints that were set in the baseline budget by the Council, 
5. cost reductions were determined in a simplistic uninformed fashion without due consideration to their achievability, 
6. the Service failed to effectively plan for the cost reductions and failed to deliver them, 
7. mitigating actions were not proposed during the course of the year, but rather an acceptance that the budget will be in deficit, 

 
In previous years, Children Services has consistently failed to deliver operational services within the constraints of the approved baseline budget. Whilst it cannot be 
concluded exactly why this failure has occurred, it is likely to be one or a combination of the points listed above. A revised approach in 20/21 to budget planning has 
narrowed the budget gap and delivered cost reduction, which provides optimistic signs of more effective budgetary control. It is difficult to give greater assurance 
even though the service was underspent in 20/21, as the underspend was mainly due to a large influx of grant money from the Welsh Government due to the Covid 19 
Pandemic. . In the future, the principles of an informed and realistic baseline budget, planned and deliverable cost saving and a fortitude about making corrective 
actions within the agreed financial constraints are fundamental to effective management of the Children Services budget.  
 

 

Budget Monitoring - Service 
 
Each budget holder is responsible for managing the budget for each function in Children’s Services. This is done by ensuring the budget is correctly aligned based on service 
delivery plans and that monitoring and corrective action is taken throughout the year to remain on track. The council uses commitment accounting to manage forthcoming 
committed costs and thus has a greater understanding of the overall budgetary position at the year end.  
 
The Eprocurement system enables current and future costs to be correctly allocated to a budget. A decision was taken by the Council to remove the cost control gateway 
from the system that would have prevented budget holders from exceeding their budget. This was withdrawn because of excessive administration, but much of this 
administration may be caused because budgets have not been effectively allocated in the first instance or additional resources have not been moved into the budget during 
the course of the year. It was stated by the head of finance that costs were being placed wherever there was budget, which lead to inaccurate reporting. The override 
gateway was also removed from the Efinancials System, allowing users to amend committed system costs regardless of whether there is the budget. Although the gateway 
has been removed, budget holders are informed that they are exceeding their budgets via an override button.   
 
The Council are not utilising the financial systems which could enforce more proactive and effective budget management and would be a useful tool in controlling budget 
overspends in Children Services. As a result, the Council’s approach to commitment accounting is less effective.  
 
It is the responsibility of Directors and Heads of Service to control income and expenditure within their service and to monitor performance against approved budget. They 
should report, in consultation with the Section 151 Officer, to the Cabinet on significant variances within their own service and take any action necessary to avoid exceeding 
their budget allocation. 
 

P
age 18



Children’s Services Financial Management – Final Report – August 2021                           
                               

Full details of our audit are available upon request Unrestricted 

The Finance Team provide a detailed monthly report on the budgetary position identifying significant variances from approved budgets for investigation by Budget 
Managers. The Service uses this information to produce an outturn report that is considered by Cabinet and Scrutiny each quarter.  
 
There is a general pattern of failure to deliver services withing budgetary constraints. The outturn reports identify reasons for this failure and identifies some form of 
mitigation actions. These are mostly surrounding additional funding and an update on the cost reduction measure (which should have already been included into the 
baseline budget). The standard of mitigation offered by Children Services is must less robust that of other Services in the Council. It was acknowledged by the Head of 
Finance that the mitigating actions for all areas of the Council could be improved within the budget reports.  
 
The Council is fulfilling its obligation under constitutional rules by producing reports showing where Children Services are unable to balance expenditure and resources 
within existing approved budgets under their control. The reports themselves have some explanation about why the overspends may be occurring but have minimal 
information around mitigating actions than can be taken. There may be acceptance that a budget deficit is the norm and that therefore limited ownership and 
accountability. 
 

 

Budget Monitoring - Cabinet and Scrutiny 
 
Reports are presented to Cabinet giving oversight on the failure by Children Services to deliver services within the approved budgetary constraints. It is the role of the 
Cabinet to ensure that public services are delivered within the confines that public finances are well managed and that budgets are respected. Explanations are provided 
by the Children Services to justify the budget overspend, but there are minimal proposed mitigating actions outlined to address the situation.  
 
Likewise, reports are presented to both the Finance Scrutiny Panel and the Health and Care Scrutiny Committee so that they may fulfil their role as a critical friend in helping 
the Council achieve its objectives.  
 
It was acknowledged by the Senior Management team that the there is a lack of visibility within the budget reports. The Service intelligence suggested that their budget 
would be ok at the end of the year, however this was not have been visible from the budget monitoring reports.  
 
References are made frequently in both of Executive and Scrutiny forums on the inability of Children Services to meet the budgetary requirements, however the current 
governance process appears to be having a minimal impact on changing the pattern of financial management. Both the Cabinet and the Scrutiny Committees need to 
have greater assurances and confirmation of the changes that are happening within the service and that Children Services can effectively deliver their planned Service 
within approved budgets. 
 

 

Support, Guidance and Training  
 
Children’s Services have had several training sessions on financial management where most managers had taken part.   
 
A questionnaire was sent out to budget holders to gain their understanding of the budget setting and management process.  Whilst there was a limited response, we were 
able to conclude the following: 

• 25% did not know about the Council’s financial Regulations 

• 50% did not understand the virement process 

• 25% did not know the status of their current budget 

• 87.7% had received 1:1 training 

• 62.5% said the training had been adequate 

P
age 19



Children’s Services Financial Management – Final Report – August 2021                           
                               

Full details of our audit are available upon request Unrestricted 

 
 
 
  

Findings and recommendations linked to these key findings can be found in Appendix 1 below. Appendix 2 displays details relevant findings from the data analysis.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• 75 % satisfied with the support from Finance  

• 100% understood that budgets needed to prioritise in overspent 

• 75% indicated additional pressure due to Covid-19 
 
The Section 151 Officer has fulfilled the responsibility to ensure that all budget holders have the appropriate training to manage a budget. This is supported by the responses 
in the survey. However, the results also highlight a there is some specific areas where further training could be required e.g. virement. 
Further results from the survey can be seen in Appendix 2, graphs 2-11.  
 
With greater emphasis being placed on the Budget holders to have greater autonomy, there needs to be a greater level of awareness and skills to ensure effective 
budgetary control in accordance with Council rules. Therefore, Childrens Services need to be provided with more guidance and training in some areas in order to fulfil 
their roles to a level that the council expects. 
 

P
age 20



Children’s Services Financial Management – Final Report – August 2021                           
                               

Full details of our audit are available upon request Unrestricted 

 

 

Finding Agreed Actions 
Responsible 
Officer 

Budget Setting – Creation and Allocation 

The continuing level of overspending may be an 
indication that in some areas the level of budget 
allocated may not be reflective of the true cost of 
the service. In addition, a more inclusive budget 
setting process by either the Finance team, Children 
Services Management, or both will enhance the 
acceptance, ownership, and delivery of the budget.  

As developed through 2020/21 budget setting process the IBP (as owned by the Service Head) drives the 
budget process end to end and has been further improved for 2022/23 – action to ensure this is fully 
embedded with Services and Finance working together 
 
Depending on what Cabinet / Council agree for the Service Budget (Pressures and savings targets), then 
we decide to proceed at Risk with some budget changes (£1.5m central budget) and may always be 
slightly adrift on the service budget versus demands as they change over time 
 
The finance business partner is an integral part of the Children’s Services Leadership Team and meets 
with us weekly.  She meets with CLT to identify pressures and areas for saving and works with CLT to 
develop the budget. 
 
In 2020-21 the Service was not overspent. 
 
The Service has strengthened the system for approving out of county residential placements (the most 
expensive expenditure type).  
 
Include budget setting in OMT specifically, rather than with each SM cluster manager group. 
 
 

 

Jan Coles 

Timescale 
 

Priority 3 SWAP Ref: In place 

Budget Setting -Agency / Staff Costs 

The Council is failing to directly budget and control 

the costs of agency / contracted workers when the 

budget is set. Budgets are matched to costs 

retrospectively as they are incurred. This approach 

does not allow the Service to monitor expenditure 

against a target and therefore fails to encourage 

financial control. 

 

No additional action needed.  
There is a central budget for agency costs. This is very closely monitored weekly and again monthly. The 
finance team and CLT are of the view that this is the most cost-effective way to effectively manage the 
expenditure on agency costs. Agency staff are only used to cover a vacancy that emerges against a 
critical post to meeting our statutory duties and which cannot be filled through a permanent member of 
staff. Use of agency is a mitigating action to ensure we carry out our legal functions. 
 
The current arrangement provides tight financial control, and the proposed change would give budget 
holders at Team level the impression that they have an allocated budget to spend and will encourage 
additional expenditure. 
  

Responsible 
Officer 

 

Childrens SMT and 
Finance 

Timescale 
 

Priority 2 SWAP Ref: In place 

Appendix 1 Issues & Action Plan 

P
age 21



Children’s Services Financial Management – Final Report – August 2021                           
                               

Full details of our audit are available upon request Unrestricted 

Budget Setting – Cost Reductions / Savings 

The process of budget setting had vastly improved in 

20/21 with the prescribed budgets being a holistic 

representation of the financial position. However, it 

was seen that the Service only included 90% of the 

cost reductions within the baseline budget. 

Unidentified savings were entered into the system 

using the account code ‘Budget to be Found’. The 

Council should endeavour to add all savings into the 

baseline budgets for future years.  

 

 

It is the norm to centralise some savings targets until they can be allocated to a specific cost centre, at 
the point of budget setting it isn’t always clear about who and how will benefit for the savings, these will 
be allocated when there is clarity as the year processes 
 
The nature of the work that CS do makes it impossible to predict savings in detail. For example, through 
the ‘closer to home’ work children will be stepped down to a different placement type, depending on 
their need at the time. Neither the specific child, nor the placement type can be predicted 12 months in 
advance.  
 
No Action needed as once we have clarity on the cost centres to be allocated the savings we do vire the 
budget 
 

Responsible 
Officer 
 

N/A 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Timescale 

Priority 2 SWAP Ref: N/A 

Budget Management – Maintenance including 

Virements  

On-going management of the committed budget on 

the Eprocurement System should take place 

regularly throughout the year to mirror the current 

need. Budget accuracy is dependent on 'good 

housekeeping’ within the Eprocurement System.  

Closing down orders will enable services to identify 

and use the budget elsewhere within their areas and 

will help the service to monitor their budgets 

effectively.  

 

 
The current approach is that managers manage their own budgets and do not vire between services.  
SMT could agree to vire budget and Finance would process these requests 
 
Further action for Finance to explain the virement rules again so managers fully understand what is 
required 
 
 
Service needs to review their current approach to ensure agency, Respite / short breaks and Placement 
detail are kept up to date on eproc and ensure that their monitoring spreadsheets are reconciled to 
eproc.  Also establish if the spreadsheet is duplication and be stopped 
 
There is an action plan in place, monitored by CLT, developed following year end 2021/21. 

Responsible 
Officer 

Childrens SMT 
 
 
Finance 
 
 
Childrens admin 
and managers 
 

Timescale 
 

Priority 2 SWAP Ref: 
During 2021-22 

Budget Management – Maintenance including 

Virements  

On-going management of the budget cannot 

effectively take place unless the budget is realigned 

throughout the year to reflect changing needs and 

circumstances of the Council.  The tools, systems 

and protocols are available, but Children’s Services 

have not yet embraced the potential functionality of 

the Collaborative Planning system. The failure to 

 
 
 

Further CP Training for managers and refresher training 
 
Further action for Finance to explain the virement rules again so managers fully understand what is 
required 
 
Enhance the CS induction for Managers to include financial processes and budget management.  
 
 

Responsible 
Officer 

 
Finance 
 
 
Finance 
 
CLT and Finance 
 
 

P
age 22



Children’s Services Financial Management – Final Report – August 2021                           
                               

Full details of our audit are available upon request Unrestricted 

have accurate budgets severely affects the 

effectiveness of budget monitoring. If the budgets 

are not kept up to date, this could provide 

management and scrutiny with an inaccurate 

budgetary picture.   

 

Timescale 

Priority 2 SWAP Ref: 
During 2021-22 

Budget Monitoring - Service 

The Council are not utilising the financial systems 

which could enforce more proactive and effective 

budget management and would be a useful tool in 

controlling budget overspends in Children Services. 

As a result, the Council’s approach to commitment 

accounting is less effective. 

 
Purchase cards and use of imprest to be better controlled and administration undertaken each month.  
Managers to ensure appropriate and essential spend against the card / imprest accounts and managers 
understand the consequences on their budget 
 
Enhance the CS induction for Managers to include financial processes and budget management.  
 
Finance to support through more training if needed 
 
 

Responsible 
Officer 

 
Senior Managers 

Timescale 

Priority 3 SWAP Ref: During 2021-22 

Budget Monitoring - Service 

 The Council is fulfilling its obligation under 
constitutional rules by producing reports showing 
where Children’s Services are unable to balance 
expenditure and resources within existing approved 
budgets under their control. However, there is 
improvement needed within reports themselves to 
explain why the overspends may be occurring and 
the mitigating actions than can be taken. 

 
Appendix B is completed by the Head for cabinet and includes mitigating actions for cost reductions and 
alternatives to bridge the financial gap. 
 
This report also highlights and emerging pressures and mitigating actions.  
 
Children’s Services manage their budget and consider how to mitigate overspends as part of their heads 
report each month 
 
Finance Business Partner meets with CLT to review progress against Savings regularly.  
 
Children’s Services spent in line with predicted pressures in 2019-2020 and did not overspend in 2020-21 
 
 

Responsible 
Officer 

 
Jan Coles 
 
 
 
Head and SMT 
 
 
 
 

Timescale 

Priority 2 SWAP Ref:  During 2021-22 

 

 

P
age 23



Children’s Services Financial Management – Final Report – August 2021                           
                               

Full details of our audit are available upon request Unrestricted 

Budget Monitoring - Cabinet and Scrutiny 

References are made frequently in both of Executive 
and Scrutiny forums on the inability of Children 
Services to maintain financial control, however the 
current governance process appears to be having a 
minimal impact on changing the behaviour of the 
Service. Both the Cabinet and the Scrutiny 
Committees need to have greater assurances and 
confirmation that Children Services can effectively 
deliver their planned Service within approved 
budgets. 

 
Appendix B is completed by the Head for cabinet each month and includes mitigating actions for cost 
reductions and alternatives to bridge any financial gap. 
 
Scrutiny work programme requested additional financial analysis (demand, savings etc) to challenge VFM 
and cost drivers 
 
No evidence for these references has been provided. 
Children’s Services spent in line with predicted pressures in 2019-2020 and did not overspend in 2020-21 
   

Responsible 
Officer 

Jan Coles 
 
 
 
Scrutiny 

 
Timescale 
 

Priority 2 SWAP Ref: During 2021-22 

Support, Guidance and Training  

With greater emphasis being placed on the Budget 

holders to have greater autonomy, there needs to be 

a greater level of awareness and skills to ensure 

effective budgetary control in accordance with 

Council rules. Therefore, Children’s Services need to 

be provided with more guidance and training in some 

areas to fulfil their roles to a level that the council 

expects. 

 

 
 
Revised formal training programme to be presented by Finance 
 
Actions above relating to training and development 
 
 

Responsible  
Officer 

Finance and SMT 
 

Timescale 

Priority 3 SWAP Ref: 
During 2021-22 

 
 
 
  

P
age 24



Children’s Services Financial Management – Final Report – August 2021                           
                               

Full details of our audit are available upon request Unrestricted 

 

 

Table 1 – Budgeted and Actual Cost Centres for 19/20 & 20/21 

The table below displays the budgeted and actual costs for some of the cost centres used by Childrens Services. The table gives an indication that there is a possible discrepancy with the 

budget creation process due to the size of the over and underspends within the areas.  

Cost 
Centre 

Cost Centre Name 
Budget 2 (19-
20)  

Actuals (19-
20)  

Overspends 
(19-20) 

Budget 2 (20-
21)  

Actuals 
(Period 8 20-
21)  

Overspends 
(20-21) 

Budget Split 
to P8 (20-21) 

Overspends 
P8 (20-21) 

411004 ASSESSMENT TEAM (STAFFING) £614,860.00 £803,863.70 £189,003.70 £750,910.00 £540,032.56 -£210,877.44 £500,606.67 £39,425.89 

412302 SHORT BREAKS - IDS (NORTH) £16,500.00 £203,993.14 £187,493.14 £127,450.00 £174,927.13 £47,477.13 £84,966.67 £89,960.46 

414102 ADOPTION PLACEMENT & SUPPORT £174,800.00 £294,830.28 £120,030.28 £238,830.00 £403,818.87 £164,988.87 £159,220.00 £244,598.87 

414353 CONNECTED PERSONS - (SOUTH) £40,440.00 £297,078.35 £256,638.35 £368,870.00 £267,470.08 -£101,399.92 £245,913.33 £21,556.75 

414363 RESIDENTIAL (EXT) - (SOUTH) £1,167,030.00 £3,305,916.45 £2,138,886.45 £1,649,530.00 £1,335,543.54 -£313,986.46 £1,099,686.67 £235,856.87 

414364 RESIDENTIAL (EXT) - (NORTH) £2,122,350.00 £2,787,399.23 £665,049.23 £1,837,320.00 £2,014,004.07 £176,684.07 £1,224,880.00 £789,124.07 

410001 CHILDREN & FAMILIES - (H.O.S) £1,545,320.00 £370,697.66 -£1,174,622.34 £1,324,820.00 £496,935.94 -£827,884.06 £883,213.33 -£386,277.39 

413001 FAMILY SUPPORT (STAFFING) £433,750.00 £174,736.67 -£259,013.33 £519,370.00 £214,646.36 -£304,723.64 £346,246.67 -£131,600.31 

414302 THROUGH CARE (STAFFING) -NORTH £713,760.00 £633,372.35 -£80,387.65 £857,580.00 £524,265.74 -£333,314.26 £571,720.00 -£47,454.26 

414316 16+17 ACCOMODATION £22,500.00 £25,074.02 £2,574.02 £94,000.00 £1,223,492.19 £1,129,492.19 £62,666.67 £1,160,825.52 

 

 

Table 2 – Budgeted and Actual Costs within the Account Codes for 20/21 

In period 8 of this year there have already been some overspends of 

the working budgets within the account codes.  The table to the left 

displays clearly displays that there is an issue with the virement 

process used by the Service. The working budget should be moved in 

order to accommodate the needs of the service and to maintain a 

balanced budget Four of the account £47codes display that they 

have no working budgets but over £47,000 spent.   

 

 

 

 

 

Account Codes 
Working 
Budget YTD Actuals Overspends 

Period 8 
budget 

Overspends 
(p8) 

Agency Off Contract £0.00 £995,543.00 £995,543.00 £0.00 £995,543.00 

Agency On Contract £0.00 £477,032.05 £477,032.05 £0.00 £477,032.05 

Cost Of Pension Strain £0.00 £47,163.12 £47,163.12 £0.00 £47,163.12 

Direct Payment £309,150.00 £368,808.45 £59,658.45 £206,100.00 £162,708.45 

Other Services £88,404.00 £507,050.15 £418,646.15 £58,936.00 £448,114.15 

Other Third Parties £35,000.00 £189,165.00 £154,165.00 £23,333.33 £165,831.67 

Other Transfer Payments £86,090.00 £156,674.62 £70,584.62 £57,393.33 £99,281.29 

Redundancy Costs Pay £0.00 £77,275.70 £77,275.70 £0.00 £77,275.70 

Residential Placements £6,665,550.00 £4,860,451.36 -£1,805,098.64 £4,443,700.00 £416,751.36 

Transporting Clients £137,990.00 -£41,403.25 £96,586.75 £91,993.33 £96,586.75 

Appendix 2  Data Analysis of the Budget 

P
age 25



Children’s Services Financial Management – Final Report – August 2021                           
                               

Full details of our audit are available upon request Unrestricted 

Graphs 1&2 – Services that have spend the budget on Agency Costs in 20/21 

The graphs to the left display which areas within 

children’s services have coded costs to the agency 

cost codes within 20/21.   

In 19/20 both of these areas did not have the 

correct budget and were overspent by £3m as 

shown in Table 3 below.  

 

 

In both the 2019/20 and 2020/21 accounts there is an account code called ‘Budget Reductions to Be Found’. Cost reductions should be included within the baseline budget and not kept 

separately within the system. There is no incentive to budget holder to adhere to or find the savings if they are stored elsewhere within the accounting system.  Neither table displays any 

actual costs, however it was stated by the Finance officer that when a saving has been found it would been included within the main budget. This can be seen in the budget 2 figures in 

20/21.  

Table 4 – Budget Reductions to be found in 19/20                                                                                                                                                                        Table 5 – Budget Reduction to be found 20/21 

 

 

 

 

 

Account Codes Overspends for 19/20 

AGENCY OFF CONTRACT £2,085,009.35 

AGENCY ON CONTRACT £1,235,629.32 

Cost 
Centres 

Account 
Name  

Budget 1 
(20/21) 

Budget 2 
(20/21) 

Period 
8 
Actuals 

Children & 
Families - 
(H.O.S) 

Budget 
Reductions 
to be 
Found £256,000.00 £29,030.00 - 

National 
App 
Advocacy 

Budget 
Reductions 
to be 
Found -£20,480.00 

-
£20,480.00 - 

Residential 
- Ystrad 

Budget 
Reductions 
to be 
Found £0.00 £76,460.00 - 

Cost Centre Cost Centre Name Account Account Name  Budget 2 (2019-20)   Actuals (2019-20)  

371004 STANDBY FUNCTION RE500600 BUDGET REDUCTIONS TO BE FOUND                          4,330.00                                     -    

410001 CHILDREN & FAMILIES - (H.O.S) RE500600 BUDGET REDUCTIONS TO BE FOUND                     503,340.00                                     -    

412301 SHORT BREAKS - IDS (SOUTH) RE500600 BUDGET REDUCTIONS TO BE FOUND -                  112,390.00                                     -    

413004 YMC (YOT MANAGERS CYMRU) RE500600 BUDGET REDUCTIONS TO BE FOUND                          2,900.00                                     -    

414334 IFA'S - IDS (NORTH) RE500600 BUDGET REDUCTIONS TO BE FOUND -                     54,240.00                                     -    

414335 IFA'S - (SOUTH) RE500600 BUDGET REDUCTIONS TO BE FOUND -                  212,570.00                                     -    

414336 IFA'S - (NORTH) RE500600 BUDGET REDUCTIONS TO BE FOUND -                  438,460.00                                     -    

414351 CONNECTED PERSONS - IDS SOUTH RE500600 BUDGET REDUCTIONS TO BE FOUND -                     13,720.00                                     -    

414353 CONNECTED PERSONS - (SOUTH) RE500600 BUDGET REDUCTIONS TO BE FOUND -                  243,540.00                                     -    

414354 CONNECTED PERSONS - (NORTH) RE500600 BUDGET REDUCTIONS TO BE FOUND -                  181,710.00                                     -    

414361 RESIDENTIAL (EXT) - IDS (SOUTH RE500600 BUDGET REDUCTIONS TO BE FOUND -                     48,070.00                                     -    

414362 RESIDENTIAL (EXT) - IDS (NORTH RE500600 BUDGET REDUCTIONS TO BE FOUND -                  102,760.00                                     -    

414363 RESIDENTIAL (EXT) - (SOUTH) RE500600 BUDGET REDUCTIONS TO BE FOUND -               1,373,700.00                                     -    

414364 RESIDENTIAL (EXT) - (NORTH) RE500600 BUDGET REDUCTIONS TO BE FOUND -               1,244,980.00                                     -    

28.18%

14.70%

13.27%
5.74%

1.10%

13.00%

11.33%

12.68%
1. % Costs Coded to Agency On Contract (20/21)

Assessment Team (Staffing) Care & Supp (Staff) - North
Care & Supp (Staff) - South Children & Families - (H.O.S)
Fostering (Staffing) - (North) Safeguarding (Staffing)
Standby Function Through Care (Staffing) -South

2.14%

23.09%

29.47%

4.07%

4.40%

3.63%

2.16%

5.27%

14.56% 11.19%

2. % Costs Coded to Agency off Contract (20/21) 

Adoption (Staffing) Assessment Team (Staffing)
Care & Supp (Staff) - North Care & Supp (Staff) - South
Ids (Staffing) - (South) Residential - Bannau
Safeguarding (Staffing) Standby Function

P
age 26



Children’s Services Financial Management – Final Report – August 2021                           
                               

Full details of our audit are available upon request Unrestricted 

Questionnaire Results 

A questionnaire was sent round to all budget holders within children’s services, although the uptake of the this was limited those that did respond provided some insight that further 

training may be needed. As well as some areas where further improvement may help the service with the budget management.  

 

 

 

 

 

7.How often do you view budget information?

Monthly

More than a month

Do not view any
budget information

9.For 19/20 financial year, what was the final status 
of your individual budget?

On Budget

Over Budget

I don't know

5.Do you feel that you were appropriately 
involved within the budget setting process?

Yes

Partly

No

10.Do you monitor the budgets for individual 
cases/jobs?

Yes

No

6.Do you feel you have been provided with enough 
training in regards to managing your budget?

Yes

No

4.Do you understand the virement process?

Yes

No

11.Are you aware of the process for employing a 
new agency worker?

Yes

No

3..As a Budget Holder are you compliant with the 
financial regulations?

Yes

No

I don't know what
these are

8. What is the status of your individual budget 
for this year (2020/21)?

On Budget

Over Budget

I don't know

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL. 
 

Cabinet/ EMT- 07-09-21 
Group Leaders – 08-09-2021 

Audit Committee – 13-09-2021 
Democratic Services Committee – 14-09-2021 

County Council – 23-09-2021 
 

REPORT AUTHOR: Chair of the Governance and Audit Committee 

Head of Finance 

Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

SUBJECT: Constitution  

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

Decision 

 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 Members are  asked to consider an amendment to the membership of the 

Governance and Audit Committee from May 2022 arising from the Local 
Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021.  

 
2. Background 
 
2.1 Section 116 of the Act makes requires the following amendments to the 

membership of the Committee with effect from May 2022: 
 

 One third of the membership of the Governance and Audit Committee must be 
lay persons (Independent Members); 

 The person appointed as Chair of the Governance and Audit Committee must 
be a lay person (Independent Members). 

 
2.2 Whilst this change does not come into effect until May 2022, it is necessary for the 

Council to begin the process of recruiting Independent Members for the 
Governance and Audit Committee from May 2022. The Council needs to ensure 
that it starts the process sufficiently early to be able to draw from a wide pool of 
potential candidates for the role. It is hoped to commence the recruitment process 
during the Autumn if the proposed amendments to the Constitution are approved by 
Full Council in September 2021. 

 
2.3 Currently the Governance and Audit Committee comprises 14 Members plus and 1 

Independent Member. To comply with the requirement for one third of members  to 
Independent Members,  we can either have a Committee of 3 ( ie 2 Members plus 1 
Independent members), a Committee of 6 ( ie 4 Members plus 2 Independent 
members), a Committee of 9 ( ie 6 Members plus 3 Independent, a Committee of 12 
( ie 8 Members plus 4 Independent members)  or a Committee of 15 ( ie 10 
Members plus 5 Independent members). 

 
2.5 It is considered that a Committee of only 3 or 6  are wholly inappropriate due to the 

limited number of  Council Members being on such a Committee.  Similarly,  having  
a committee of 12 or 15 would mean the Council would needing to attract 4 or 5 

Page 29

6



new Independent Members as the current Independent Members  term of office 
expires in May 2022 and his position cannot be renewed.  The recruitment of 4 or 5 
new Independent Members with the required skills  set  may prove to be difficult, if 
not impossible.  

 
2.6 It is therefore recommended that  the Constitution is amended to provide for a 

Governance and Audit Committee consisting of 9 (6 Councillors and 3 Independent 
Members) which would satisfy the one third requirement of the 2021 Act. 

 
2.7 The above recommendation has been considered and approved by Group Leaders  

, [Democratic Services Committee]  and [the Governance and Audit Committee]  
 
 
3. Recommendation: 
 

Recommendation to the Audit 
Committee: 

Reason for Recommendation: 

1. That Council approves  an 
amendment to the membership 
of the Governance and Audit 
Committee to become 6 
Councillors and 3 Independent 
Members as from May 2022. 

2. That the Monitoring Officer is 
authorised to make such 
amendments to the Constitution 
as are required to implement  
recommendation 1 above. 

 

To meet the requirement of the Local 
Government and Elections (Wales) 
Act 2021 that as from May 2022, one 
third of the membership of the 
Governance and Audit Committee 
must be lay persons. 

 
Relevant Policy (ies):  
Within Policy: Y  Within Budget: Y 

 
Relevant Local Member(s): N/A 

 
Person(s) To Implement Decision: Wyn Richards 
Date By When Decision To Be Implemented:  

 

Contact Officer: Wyn Richards, Scrutiny Manager and Head of Democratic 
Services. 

Tel:   01597-826375 
Email:   wyn.richards@powys.gov.uk 

 
Background Papers used to prepare Report: 
 

Page 30



Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme 

2021

30/07/21 Strategic Risk Management  - Q1

Strategic Risk - Health and Care Workforce Development

Strategic Risk - Brexit

Internal Audit - Performance Monitoring Q1

Internal Audt - work plan Q2

Annual Audit Opinion

Internal Audit Report - Children's Budget Management defer to 13 September 2021

Internal Audit Report - Y Gaer defer to 13 September 2021

Audit Wales - Workplan

Treasury Management Q1

Fraud

13/09/21 Internal Audit Report - Ysgol Calon Cymru

Internal Audit Report - Highways

Internal Audit Report - Covid Business Grants

Internal Audit report - Y Gaer 

Internal Audit Report - Children's Budget Management

29/09/21 Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement

Capital programme

Audit W ales -Financial Sustainability

Fraud

Strategic Risk Register

Internal Audit - Performance

05/11/21 Pension Fund Accounts

Strategic Risk Management - Q2

Internal Audit Performance monitoring - Q2

Internal Audit Work Plan - Q3

Fraud

Closure of Accounts

Page 31

7



defer to 13 September 2021

defer to 13 September 2021

Page 32


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	Minutes

	4 Internal Audit Report - Children's Budget Management
	6 Governance and Audit Committee - Constitution
	7 WORK PROGRAMME

